I. INTRODUCTION 

The central issue in this case is the extent of trial court discretion 

to manage proceedings and, in the face of unacceptable litigation 

practices, to impose the sanction of dismissal. Respondent, Arthur West, 

is a self-described "citizen activist" with a history of filing legal actions 

against Washington governmental entities and officials. By one count, 

over a roughly ten-year period, Mr. West filed or joined at least forty-nine 

cases in Washington's state and federal courts. Many of Mr. West's 

lawsuits have been dismissed for lack of merit, lack of action, or both. 

Recently, Mr. West was barred by the Federal Court of the Western 

District of Washington from filing additional lawsuits without express 

leave of the Court due to the number of cases he filed that the court found 

to be frivolous or without merit. This ban was upheld this year by the 

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. See In re West 552 Fed. Appx. 624 (9th 

Cir. 2014). 1 

The Port of Olympia (the "Port") has often been a target of Mr. 

Wesfs litigation. Following the Port's entry into a lease with the 

Weyerhaeuser Company ("Weyerhaeuser") in 2005, Mr. West initiated a 

string of lawsuits (including the current action) against a number of public 

1 Indeed, in an action related to the present case, Mr. West was sanctioned for 
filing a frivolous original action in this Court. See CP 77-88. 
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and private entities challenging various aspects of the lease. 2 After Mr. 

West took actions over a three-year span that delayed resolution of the 

instant Public Records Act ("PRA") action against the Port, the trial court 

concluded, after a thorough review of the record, that Mr. West 

"deliberately and willfully" hindered the efficient administration of justice 

and substantially prejudiced the Port, justifying the sanction of dismissal. 

The trial court pointed to tactics such as Mr. West's filing affidavits of 

prejudice against almost all judges on the Thurston County Superior Court 

bench, noting hearings on days opposing counsel and/or the assigned 

judicial officer had expressly stated they were unavailable, or noting and 

then simply failing to confirm and/or attend hearings. 

Division II of the Court of Appeals reversed, finding the trial court 

abused its discretion in dismissing Mr. West's case. Substituting its 

judgment for the trial court's, the Court of Appeals determined that no 

reasonable court could have possibly concluded that Mr. West's tactics 

constituted unacceptable litigation practices or refusal to comply with an 

order of the court under CR 41 (b), and dismissal of his case was not 

therefore justified. 

2 See West v. Thurston County, 169 Wn. App. 862, 282 P.3d 1150 (2012); West 
v. Port of Olympia, 166 Wn. App. 1046 (2012); West v. Stahley, 155 Wn. App. 691, 229 
P.2d 943 (2010); In re Recall of Telford, 166 Wn.2d 148, 206 P.3d 1248 (2009); West v. 
Weyerhaeuser, 2009 WL 1259154 (W.D. Wash. 2009). 
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The Court of Appeals erred when it reversed the trial court. The 

Court not only inappropriately second-guessed the trial court's evaluation 

of the misconduct at issue, the Court's decision places significant 

limitations on the abilities of trial courts to manage vexatious litigants who 

spend more time delaying their actions rather than resolving them on the 

merits. In addition, the Court of Appeals' decision contradicts this Court's 

precedents regarding trial court discretion in managing litigation. The 

Port therefore respectfully requests that this Court accept review and 

uphold the trial court's dismissal of Mr. West's PRA case. 

II. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

The Port of Olympia is a municipal corporation of the State of 

Washington, Defendant below, and Respondent at the Court of Appeals, 

and submits this Petition for Review of the Court of Appeals' decision 

terminating review identified below. 

III. COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION TO BE REVIEWED 

On August 5, 2014, Division Two of the Court of Appeals issued 

an unpublished decision reversing a Thurston County Superior Court order 

dismissing Respondent's PRA lawsuit. On September 12, 2014, the Court 

of Appeals denied the Port's Motion for Reconsideration. A copy of the 

Decision, along with the Court of Appeals' Order denying reconsideration, 

is attached hereto as Appendix A. 
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IV. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

1. Whether, after the trial court expressly concluded that 

Respondent acted willfully and deliberately in causing excessive delays 

hindering the efficient administration of justice and prejudicing the Port, 

the Court of Appeals erred when it concluded that the trial court abused its 

discretion in dismissing Respondent's claim under the trial court's 

inherent authority to manage its own proceedings. 

2. Whether, after the trial court expressly concluded that 

Respondent acted willfully and deliberately in causing excessive delays 

hindering the efficient administration of justice and prejudicing the Port, 

the Court of Appeals erred when it failed to consider Respondent's 

violation of court rules, as opposed to court orders, when reviewing 

dismissal of an action pursuant to CR 41 (b). 

3. Whether the trial court committed reversible error by 

substituting its judgment for that of the trial court in determining that no 

reasonable court could have concluded that Respondent willfully and 

deliberately caused excessive delays. 

V. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

This case, originally filed in 2007, stems from a string of appeals 

and lawsuits that Respondent, Arthur West, filed against the Port of 

Olympia, the City of Olympia, Thurston County, Weyerhaeuser, and 
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vanous individually named public employees and officials related to a 

2005 lease between the Port and Weyerhaeuser.3 This particular action 

involves Mr. West's prose suit challenging a State Environmental Policy 

Act ("SEP A") determination related to the Weyerhaeuser lease and 

alleging Public Records Act ("PRA") violations against both the Port and 

Weyerhaeuser. CP 33-54 (Plaintiffs Second Amended Complaint). In 

2008, the SEPA claim and the PRA claim against Weyerhaeuser were 

dismissed, leaving only the PRA claim against the Port.4 CP 91; 94-95. 

The Port timely filed a responsive pleading on Mr. West's PRA 

claim, thereby demonstrating its readiness to show cause in April of 2008. 

Yet, Mr. West's PRA action against the Port languished. CP 936-37. By 

a number of means, and over a period spanning almost four years (May 

2008 to January 2012), Mr. West took specific actions that caused 

numerous delays in reaching a final resolution of the PRA claim. 

First, following dismissal of his SEP A and Weyerhaeuser claims, 

Mr. West took no action in the case for nearly eighteen months (between 

April2008 until October 2009). CP 935. On October 16, 2009, Mr. West 

3 Again, see West v. Thurston County, 169 Wn. App. 862, 282 P.3d 1150 (2012); 
West v. Port of Olympia, 166 Wn. App. 1046 (2012); West v. Stahley, 155 Wn. App. 691, 
229 P.2d 943 (2010); In re Recall of Telford, 166 Wn.2d 148, 206 P.3d 1248 (2009); 
West v. Weyerhaeuser, 2009 WL 1259154 (W.D. Wash. 2009). 

4 The SEP A claim was dismissed for lack of standing, and the PRA claim 
against Weyerhaeuser was dismissed on the grounds that, as a private company, 
Weyerhaeuser is not subject to the PRA. CP 91; 94-95. 
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finally filed a "Declaration in Support of Motion for Show Cause Order" 

on the PRA claim. Jd. However, for eighteen months following that 

filing, Mr. West failed to successfully note a show cause hearing despite 

eight attempts. With regard to those attempts, Mr. West either: 1) noted 

hearings on dates where the assigned judicial officer was expressly 

unavailable; 2) noted hearings on dates where opposing counsel5 had filed 

advance notices of unavailability; or 3) on those dates where the court and 

opposing counsel were available, Mr. West simply failed to follow 

through with hearings he had noted. See CP 936. In fact, Mr. West's last 

three attempts at a show cause hearing (December 9, 2010, December 23, 

2010, and April 28, 2011) were all stricken due to Mr. West's failure to 

appear. CP 1228, CP 1233, CP 2717; see also CP 936. 

Additionally, Mr. West and his then co-plaintiff, Jerry Dierker6
, 

filed affidavits of prejudice against all available judges on the Thurston 

County Superior Court bench, ultimately leading to additional delay. 7 Mr. 

5 Until the present Petition for Review, the Port was represented by Goodstein 
Law Group. 

6 Mr. Dierker has been dismissed from Mr. West's PRA claim as he was not a 
party to the original request to the Port and, thus, lacked standing. Appendix A at 4-5. 

7 Of the eight affidavits of prejudice filed over the course of this action, all but 
one was filed by Mr. West and/or Mr. Dierker. One affidavit (against Judge Christine 
Pomeroy) was filed by a non-party, Olympians for Public Accountability, a move that 
ultimately lead Mr. West and Mr. Dierker to file an original action in this Court against 
Judge Richard Hicks, Judge Christine Pomeroy, and the Thurston County Superior Court. 
See CP 78-88. As noted above, that action resulted in this Court granting sanctions 
against both Mr. West and Mr. Dierker for filing a frivolous action. !d. 

- 6-



West filed his first affidavit of prejudice against Judge Gary Tabor on July 

16, 2007, shortly after filing the initial suit. CP 1062. Mr. West or his co

plaintiff then filed an additional six affidavits against each subsequently 

assigned judge: Judge Richard Hicks (October 8, 2007); Judge Christopher 

Wickham (March 20, 2008, May 2, 2008, and August 4, 2010); and, 

finally, Judge Thomas McPhee (June 10, 2011, and June 24, 2011). See 

CP 1062; CP 1212-1213; CP 1214-1215; CP 1216-1227; CP 306; CP 386; 

CP 530-32. Mr. West's affidavit against Judge McPhee was filed on the 

same day-and less than an hour after-the Port filed its June 24, 2011 

Motion to Dismiss Mr. West's PRA claims based on undue delay and 

unacceptable litigation practices. Cf CP 487 (Motion to Dismiss filed at 

8:22A.M.) with CP 530 (Affidavit of Prejudice filed at 9:08A.M.) 

The affidavits ultimately forced the Superior Court to hire the 

Honorable Sam Meyer of Thurston County District Court to serve pro tern 

on Mr. West's case. See CP 937. Judge Meyer convened a scheduling 

conference and set a date for oral argument on the Port's (then year-old) 

June 2011 Motion to Dismiss. !d. After reviewing the entire case file and 

determining that the Port had been prepared for a hearing on Mr. West's 

PRA claims as of April 2008, the trial court granted the Port's motion and 

dismissed Mr. West's PRA claim under the trial court's inherent authority 
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to manage its cases and dismiss actions based upon unacceptable litigation 

practices.8 See CP 932-40; see also, RP 07113/12, pp. 6-7. 

In doing so, the trial court expressly determined that Mr. West's 

actions went well beyond mere inaction. RP 07/13112, pp. 7. Although 

the court stated that Mr. West's intentions in scheduling hearings on 

unavailable dates was "not necessarily germane" to the ruling, the court 

concluded that the totality of Mr. West's (and Mr. Dierker's) actions 

showed that: 1) the actions were willful and deliberate; 2) the actions 

caused excessive delays that hindered the efficient administration of 

justice that substantially prejudiced the Port; and, 3) given the PRA's 

potential for daily penalties, no less onerous or less extraordinary 

sanctions would suffice. CP 938-39; RP 07/13/12, pp. 7. After the 

Court's ruling, but before a final order was entered, Judge Meyer informed 

counsel that Mr. West had filed a $15 million claim against both himself 

and Thurston County. See RP 07/27112, p. 3, 11. 16-25. 

Division II of the Court of Appeals reversed the dismissal of Mr. 

West's PRA claim. While recognizing the trial court's inherent discretion 

to dismiss actions for unacceptable litigation practices that go beyond 

8 Although the court implied in its oral ruling that it was granting the motion 
pursuant to its inherent authority, the court's written order also contains the elements 
necessary to sustain dismissal pursuant to CR 41 (b) for willful and deliberate failure to 
comply with court rules or orders. See CP 938-39. 
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mere inaction, the appeals court nonetheless rejected the trial court's 

conclusions and substituted its judgment for that of the trial court in 

holding that Mr. West's actions were not willful and deliberate. See 

Appendix A at 7. In doing so, the appeals court specifically noted in the 

trial court's oral statement that it did not determine whether Mr. West's 

attempts to schedule hearings on unavailable dates were intentional. !d. 

Yet, the appellate court made no mention of Mr. West's failure to appear 

or confirm scheduled hearings. See id. The Court also took issue with the 

trial court's findings of fact, expressing its belief that, while the trial court 

concluded that the affidavits were willful and deliberate actions hindering 

the efficient administration of justice, the trial court did not make explicit 

findings that the affidavits of prejudice were a "deliberate delay tactic." 

!d. Finally, the appeals court declined to analyze whether dismissal was 

appropriate under CR 41 (b) after concluding that "the trial court did not 

find that West or Dierker violated an order to proceed with the case." !d. 

(internal quotations omitted). This appeal follows. 

VI. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE GRANTED 

Trial courts have long maintained substantial discretionary 

authority to manage proceedings before them in order to ensure the 

orderly and expeditious disposition of cases; this includes the power to 

dismiss actions as a sanction for a plaintiffs failure to prosecute. See Link 
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v. Wabash R.R. Co., 370 U.S. 626, 629-31, 82 S. Ct. 1386 (1962) 

(describing the "ancient origin" of trial court power to dismiss for lack of 

prosecution). Although Washington's CR 41 places some limitations on 

this authority when mere inaction by plaintiffs is involved, trial courts 

continue to maintain broad authority to order dismissal for want of 

prosecution based on unacceptable litigation practices that go beyond 

mere inaction. Snohomish Cy. v. Thorp Meats, 110 Wn.2d 163, 169, 750 

P .2d 1251 (1988). As with other matters of trial court discretion, when a 

court dismisses an action based on such litigation practices, that decision 

stands unless a reviewing court finds that-based on the entirety of the 

record-no reasonable person could possibly have adopted the view of the 

trial court. See Apostolis v. City of Seattle, 101 Wn. App. 300, 303, 3 P.3d 

198 (2000) (trial court decision to dismiss action based on unacceptable 

litigation practices reviewed under an abuse of discretion standard). 

In this case, following a thorough review of the record, the trial 

court concluded that Mr. West "deliberately and willfully" undertook 

conduct that led to almost four years' delay in pursuing his Public Records 

Act claim against the Port, including failing to appear at hearings he 

scheduled. As set out below, the Court of Appeals' reversal of the trial 

court's conclusion severely limits the ability of trial courts to control their 

dockets and order dismissal of actions where plaintiffs inappropriately 
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delay final resolution oftheir actions. The Court of Appeals' decision also 

conflicts with this Court's precedent as to when dismissal for dilatoriness 

of a type not described by CR 41 (b) is appropriate, as well as the 

numerous cases regarding when it is appropriate for an appellate court to 

substitute its judgment for that of a trial court. As a result, the Port