RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON Jan 21, 2015, 10:41 am BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK



No. 90973-3

No. 43876-3-II

DIVISION II, COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

PORT OF OLYMPIA, a municipal corporation of the State of Washington,

Petitioner,

٧.

ARTHUR WEST,

Respondent.

RESPONSE OF WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY TO PORT OF OLYMPIA PETITION FOR REVIEW

KIMBERLY A. HUGHES, WSBA # 18069 Weyerhaeuser Law Department P.O. Box 9777 Federal Way, Washington 98023-9777 253-924-3440 Attorney for Weyerhaeuser Company

I.	INTRODUCTION	
II.	IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT	
III.	COURT OF APPEALS DECISION SUBJECT TO REVIEW 1	
IV.	ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 2	
V.	STATEMENT OF THE CASE	
VI.	ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW IS NOT REQUIRED 5	
VII.	CONCLUSION	
APPENDIX		

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Cases

State v. Wells, 7 Wash. App. 553, 500 P.2d 1012 (1972)
<u>Laws</u>
Chapter 42.56 RCW
Chapter 43.21C RCW
RCW 42.56.010
RCW 42.17A.005(1)
Rules
RAP 13.4 4
RAP 18.2 5

I. INTRODUCTION

In Weyerhaeuser's view, the issue currently before this Court is the ability of the Port of Olympia (the "Port") and Arthur West to voluntarily and finally resolve a long running Public Records Act ("PRA") dispute via settlement and dismissal of the instant appeal.

II. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

Weyerhaeuser Company ("Weyerhaeuser") is a Washington corporation headquartered in Federal Way, Washington. Weyerhaeuser operates a log yard on 24.5 acres of real property leased from the Port. Weyerhaeuser was a Defendant in the trial court action and a Respondent at the Court of Appeals.

III. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION SUBJECT TO REVIEW

On August 5, 2014, Division II of the Court of Appeals reversed a Thurston County Superior Court order dismissing an action by Arthur West and Jerry Dierker in which they alleged, in part, violations of the Public Records Act ("PRA")² by the Port. All other aspects of the trial court decision were upheld by the Court of Appeals. The Port requested

¹ Construction of the log yard was completed and site operations began on in October 2008. Weyerhaeuser assigned the lease and transferred operating responsibility for the log yard to Weyerhaeuser NR Company in December 2008.

² Chapter 42.56 RCW.

reconsideration, which was denied. It then filed a Petition for Review with this Court. A copy of the unpublished Court of Appeals decision is attached in Appendix A.

IV. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

Weyerhaeuser makes no assignment of error in the instant appeal.

This Response is provided pursuant to correspondence received from the

Court on November 19, 2014.

V. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The facts in the underlying dispute are generally well described in the Port's Petition for Review. A number of orders were entered by the trial court, including orders bifurcating Mr. West and Mr. Dierker's PRA claim from their State Environmental Policy Act ("SEPA")³ claim and other related claims (collectively the "non-PRA claims"); dismissing the non-PRA claims for lack of standing; and dismissing the PRA claim asserted against Weyerhaeuser. In addition to the facts outlined by the Port, Weyerhaeuser highlights the following additional, relevant facts:

In March 2008, the Port filed a motion seeking to dismiss the non-PRA claims. The Port asserted that Mr. West and Mr. Dierker lacked standing to pursue a SEPA claim and it sought to dismiss the other causes of action contained in the second amended complaint. CP 2153-2154.

³ Chapter 43.21C RCW.

Weyerhaeuser also filed a motion to dismiss in which it joined in portions of the Port's motion to dismiss and provided additional legal bases to dismiss the non-PRA claims. CP 2135-2150.

The trial court dismissed the non-PRA claims with prejudice. CP 90; CP 2554. Mr. West and Mr. Dierker filed separate motions for reconsideration, which were denied. Weyerhaeuser then moved to dismiss the PRA claim against it because Weyerhaeuser is not an "agency" as defined in RCW 42.56.010.⁴ The trial court agreed and dismissed the PRA claims asserted against Weyerhaeuser. CP 91.

Weyerhaeuser and the Port later filed a motion to address clerical errors in the earlier orders to dismiss. The trial court responded with a revised order which provided:

All claims are dismissed with prejudice, except for the Plaintiffs' claims under the Public Records Act which were previously bifurcated by the Court's order on August 24, 2007. Further challenges to the proposal based on Chapter 43.21C are prohibited (emphasis added).

CP 94-95.

After years of little action in the case, and following a motion by the Port alleging that Mr. West and Mr. Dierker had willfully and deliberately caused excessive delays, the trial court dismissed the

⁴ RCW 42.56.010 has been later recodified in RCW 42.17A.005(1).

remaining PRA claim against the Port. Mr. West and Mr. Dierker appealed all of the orders entered by the trial court.

On appeal, the court determined in an unpublished opinion that (1) Mr. Dierker did not have standing to enforce the PRA claims; (2) Mr. West and Mr. Dierker waived their arguments regarding bifurcation; and (3) the trial court properly concluded Mr. West and Mr. Dierker lacked standing for their non-PRA claims. It affirmed the trial court's bifurcation order and order dismissing the non-PRA claims asserted; reversed the trial court's order dismissing the PRA claim asserted against the Port; and remanded the case to the trial court for further proceedings on the PRA claim.

The Port appealed the reversal of the trial court order dismissing the PRA claim. It did not challenge any of the other determinations in the Court of Appeals opinion. Moreover, to the best of Weyerhaeuser's knowledge, neither Mr. West nor Mr. Dierker, filed a timely petition for review under RAP 13.4.

Mr. West and the Port ultimately resolved their disagreement and the Port filed a motion voluntarily withdrawing its Petition for Review on December 15, 2014. At the request of the Court, the parties submitted responses to the Port's motion. Weyerhaeuser does not object to the Port's motion. Mr. Dierker objected to the Port's motion; however, the

legal basis for his objection is unclear and appears to merely reiterate his earlier arguments in this case.

VI. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW IS NOT REQUIRED

Further review is not warranted. The Port and Mr. West have amicably resolved the single issue remanded to the trial court. Weyerhaeuser does not object to the Port's motion to withdraw its petition for review. Only Mr. Dierker objects — and the basis for his objection appears to be identical to the arguments considered and rejected by both the trial court and the Court of Appeals.

The standard applied to consideration of a motion to withdraw a petition for review by the party who filed the petition is clear. The decision regarding dismissal is left to the appellate court's discretion. See, RAP 18.2. *Cf.*, *State v. Wells*, 7 Wash. App. 553, 554, 500 P.2d 1012, 1013 (1972) (an accused cannot dismiss a criminal appeal as a matter of right). A decision by the Court, to exercise discretion and dismiss the Port's petition for review in light of the lower court decisions and Mr. Dierker's failure to assert new and compelling arguments, is warranted here.

VII. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Weyerhaeuser asks the Court to grant the Port's motion to dismiss its Petition for Review. In the alternative, Weyerhaeuser asks the Court to reject the Port's Petition for Review on the basis that further review is unwarranted.